**IN THE SUPREME COURT OF APPEALS OF WEST VIRGINIA
AT CHARLESTON**

**ROBERT JULIAN WARE, BETTY
JEAN WORKMAN, ALMONTA CREAK,
AND ROGER WARE,**

Appellants,

v.

**Supreme Court No. 31973
Randolph County Civil Action No. 00-C-110**

**ALMIRA JANE HOWELL, Executrix
of the Estate of Biddie L. Ware,**

Appellee.

APPELLANTS' BRIEF

**Bridgette R. Wilson
WV State Bar No. 6400
BUSCH, ZURBUCH & THOMPSON, PLLC
P. O. Box 1819
Elkins, WV 26241
(304) 636-3560
Counsel for Appellants**

I. KIND OF PROCEEDING AND NATURE OF RULING

II. STATEMENT OF FACTS

Biddie Lemon Ware died on September 26, 1998. The Appellee Jane Howell qualified as Executrix and filed a Last Will and Testament executed June 6, 1997 by Biddie Ware for probate. (See Will attached as Exhibit A to the Notice of Contest filed June 24, 1999). The Appellants filed this Notice of Contest contending the June 6, 1997 Will was procured by undue influence and asserted that the Last Will and Testament executed by Biddie Ware on June 4, 1990 expressed the true intentions of the decedent for the division of her estate. (See Will attached as Exhibit B to Notice of Contest filed June 24, 1999). Pursuant to the provisions of the 1990 Will, Biddie Ware devised to her daughter, Viola Ware, her entire estate and property since all of her other children had homes and were doing well. If Viola failed to survive Biddie Ware by sixty (60) days, she devised her entire estate, except her "home place," to her other children, equally. Each child was to receive a 1/8 share and her deceased son's share was to pass to his children, equally. The "home place," which consisted of 186 acres more or less in Mingo District, Randolph County, was placed in trust, giving any of her children the right or option to

purchase the property at fair market value. If no one purchased the property within one (1) year, then the Trustee was directed to sell the property and divide the proceeds equally between her children or their issue.

The Will presented by the Appellee for probate was purportedly drafted by attorney R. Mike Mullens. The 1997 Will left everything to Appellee and bequeathed One Dollar (\$1.00) to Biddie Ware's remaining living children, except Viola who was completely disinherited. Biddie Ware's deceased son's wife, Ruby Ware, was also bequeathed One Dollar (\$1.00). (See Will attached as Exhibit A to Notice of Contest filed June 24, 1999).

The testimony at trial showed that in October 1991, Biddie Ware, her daughter Viola, and her daughter, Jane Howell, the Appellee, decided to live together and share living expenses (See Jane Howell Conrad's trial testimony, p. 11). At the time, Biddie Ware was in her mid-nineties (Jane Howell Conrad's trial testimony, p. 13) and Viola Ware had Alzheimer's disease (See Jane Howell Conrad's trial testimony, p. 17). Prior to her death, Biddie Ware made it clear to Jane Howell that should something happen to Biddie Ware, she wanted care provided to her daughter Viola. (Jane Howell Conrad's trial testimony, p. 17).

In the Summer of 1997, Jane Howell took Biddie Ware's 1990 Will to the law offices of R. Mike Mullens where her daughter-in-law Susan Elza had worked. (Cassandra Wilmoth trial testimony, pp. 34-35 and Jane Howell Conrad trial testimony, pp. 15-16). Although the various trial testimony is conflicting, Jane Howell testified she, alone, discussed Biddie Ware's Will with Cassandra Wilmoth, a legal assistant in Mr. Mullens' office. (Jane Howell Conrad trial testimony, p. 18). Jane Howell told Cassandra Wilmoth to change Biddie Ware's Will to leave everything to herself, rather than Viola, and remove the sixty (60) day survival requirements. (Jane Howell

Conrad trial testimony, p.18). Biddie Ware did not meet with Cassandra Wilmoth prior to executing the Will. (Cassandra Wilmoth trial testimony, p. 34, Jane Howell Conrad trial testimony, pp. 18-19). Moreover, neither Jane Howell nor Biddie Ware met with Mr. Mullens, the attorney, to discuss what Biddie Ware wanted in her Will. (Jane Howell Conrad trial testimony, pp. 16 and 19).

Conversely, Cassandra Wilmoth testified that both Jane Howell and Susan Elza came to the office to have Biddie Ware's Will changed. (Cassandra Wilmoth trial testimony, p. 34). Cassandra Wilmoth testified that both Susan Elza and Jane Howell met with Mr. Mullens regarding the changes to Biddie Ware's Will. (Cassandra Wilmoth trial testimony, p. 35). Contrary to the assertions of Jane Howell, Cassandra Wilmoth testified she did not discuss the changes to Biddie Ware's Will with Jane Howell. (Cassandra Wilmoth trial testimony, pp. 35 and 37). Although Cassandra Wilmoth testified that she drafted Biddie Ware's Will, she claims it was done only pursuant to notes from Mr. Mullens, the attorney. (Cassandra Wilmoth trial testimony, pp. 38-39). Mr. Mullens testified he had no specific recollection of talking with anyone (R. Mike Mullens trial testimony, p. 7, attached as Exhibit 1).

On June 6, 1997, Jane Howell took Biddie Ware to Mr. Mullens' law office. Biddie Ware signed the Will prepared by Cassandra Wilmoth while seated in an automobile in the parking lot behind Mr. Mullens' law offices. (Cassandra Wilmoth trial testimony, p. 40). At the time, Biddie Ware was 100 years old. (Jane Howell Conrad trial testimony, p. 20). Biddie Ware sat in the car and the witnesses, Rhonda Lawson and Sandra Harman, and the Notary, Cassandra Wilmoth, went to the car to execute the Will since it was misty and the wind was blowing. (Cassandra Wilmoth trial testimony, p. 40). Cassandra Wilmoth testified she went through the

Will with Biddie Ware, not verbatim, but in a cursory fashion having Biddie Ware sign each page. (Cassandra Wilmoth trial testimony, pp. 42-43). Sandra Harman and Rhonda Lawson, employees of R. Mike Mullens, were the witnesses to Biddie Ware's Will. Both testified they witnessed Biddie Ware sign the Will (Rhonda Lawson trial testimony, pp. 57-58; Sandra Harman trial testimony, pg. 74); however, neither Sandra Harman nor Rhonda Lawson heard Biddie Ware say anything (Rhonda Lawson trial testimony, pp. 68 and 70; Sandra Harman trial testimony, p. 76).

Sandra Harman's recollection of the signing of Biddie Ware's Will is minimal. She testified that initially she could not remember where she signed Biddie Ware's Will, although she did remember going outside to watch Biddie Ware sign the Will (Sandra Harman trial testimony, p. 74). Sandra Harman testified when she first thought about it, she thought she did not sign Biddie Ware's Will outside, but then determined she must have signed it outside. (Sandra Harman trial testimony, p. 75). With such a sketchy recollection, Sandra Harman says, unequivocally, she just doesn't remember (Sandra Harman trial testimony, p. 75). On cross-examination, however, Appellee's attorney, David Wilmoth, indicated that had Sandra Harman not signed the Will outside in the presence of Biddie Ware, Harman would have been lying in the attestation clause. (Trial transcript, pp. 77-79). In response to this questioning, Harman indicated she had not lied and would have signed it outside in the presence of Biddie Ware and Rhonda Lawson. (Sandra Harman trial testimony, p. 79). Harman testified on redirect, however, she did not remember Rhonda Lawson signing the Will. (Sandra Harman trial testimony, p. 80).

Contrary to Sandra Harman's assumptions concerning where she signed Biddie Ware's Will, Rhonda Lawson, the other witness, testified she did not sign Biddie Ware's Will while

outside, but instead, waited until she went in the law office. (Rhonda Lawson trial testimony, p. 67). Despite the assertions in the attestation clause, Rhonda Lawson unequivocally testified she did not subscribe her name to Biddie Ware's Will in the presence of Biddie Ware. (Rhonda Lawson trial testimony, pg. 68). Furthermore, Rhonda Lawson testified she had never read Biddie Ware's Will nor the attestation clause which stated she subscribed her name to Biddie Ware's Will in the presence of Biddie Ware. (Rhonda Lawson trial testimony, pp. 69-70). Rhonda Lawson simply went outside to watch Biddie Ware sign her Will because her boss, Cassandra Wilmoth, asked her to. (Rhonda Lawson trial testimony, p. 61).

Rhonda Lawson's trial testimony was taken the Saturday before trial because she was residing outside the State and could not be available to testify in person. Based upon Lawson's testimony, Appellants moved to Amend their Notice of Contest pursuant to Rule 15(b) of the W. Va. R. Civ. P. to allege the Will was not validly executed and filed an Amended Notice of Contest and supplemental jury instructions. The Appellee did not object. In addition to the supplemental jury instructions regarding the valid execution of a Will, the jury was advised by the civil charge that they were "the sole judges of the credibility of the witnesses and the weight of the evidence." (See, civil charge). Moreover, the jury was advised:

From these considerations and all other evidence and circumstances appearing in the trial you may give to the testimony of the witness such credit and weight as you believe such evidence is entitled to receive.

If you believe that any witness in this case knowingly testified falsely as to any material fact, you may after considering and weighing the testimony of such witness, disregard the whole of the testimony of such witness or give it or any part thereof such weight and credit as you believe it to be entitled to receive.

(See civil charge).

The jury, after hearing the evidence and assessing the credibility of the witnesses, rendered a verdict in favor of the Appellants and found that the Will was improperly executed. Because the jury found the Will was not properly executed, the jury did not render a decision on the undue influence issue. (See Verdict Form dated November 6, 2001).

On November 16, 2001, before a Judgment Order was entered, the Appellee filed her Motion to Alter or Amend Judgment or in the Alternative for a New Trial claiming the verdict was contrary to the weight of the evidence. Appellee alleged the jury disregarded the testimony of the notary and the attestation clause, which indicated Rhonda Lawson signed Biddie Ware's Will in her presence. On November 20, 2001, Appellants filed their response to the Appellee's motion. Despite the outstanding motion, on December 20, 2001, Judge John L. Henning entered an Order removing the case from his docket with instructions to submit a proposed order incorporating the jury's verdict within thirty (30) days if the parties desired. Appellants' attorney had sent to Appellee's attorney a proposed judgment order on November 21, 2001. Because the Appellee's attorney did not forward the judgment order to the Judge for entry, Appellants' attorney, again, on December 11, 2001 sent a letter to Appellee's attorney asking him to file the order. On December 20, 2001, the same day the Judge entered his Dismissal Order, Appellee's attorney filed the judgment order with the Judge. That Order was entered January 4, 2002.

On January 17, 2002, Appellee's Motion for New Trial was noticed for hearing on April 8, 2002. At the hearing, the Appellee orally requested the Judge to rule as a matter of law on the issue of undue influence, the matter not addressed by the jury. The Judge took Appellee's motions under advisement and asked the parties to supplement with further written memorandums if they so desired. Appellants filed their supplement on or about April 16, 2002.

On April 10, 2002, Appellee filed with the Court a proposed order from the April 8, 2002 hearing. The order was not entered by the Judge. By December 2, 2002, the Court had not entered an order from the April hearing and had made no ruling after taking the matter under advisement; consequently, by letter to the Judge dated December 2, 2002, Appellants inquired about the order and offered to set the matter for another hearing. Appellants received no response. Again on April 2, 2003, Appellants inquired of the Judge about the order and submitted a proposed order denying the Appellee's Motion to Alter or Amend Judgment. That same day, the Appellee's attorney sent a letter to the Judge indicating he had objections to the proposed order, although those objections were not set forth in the attorney's letter. Appellee's attorney asked the Court for a reasonable amount of time to respond since his schedule was busy at that time. The Court, again, did not respond. Consequently, on July 7, 2003, Appellants scheduled this matter for hearing for July 28, 2003. At the hearing, nearly two years after the jury rendered its verdict for the Appellants, the Judge granted Appellee's Motion for a New Trial based upon the trial judge's concern about the credibility of the witness Rhonda Lawson as well as the Appellee's opportunity to investigate and inquire as to Rhonda Lawson's credibility. The trial judge granted the motion despite the fact the Appellee did not object to Appellants' Motion to Amend their Notice of Contest to allege Biddie Ware's June 6, 1997 Will was not validly executed nor did Appellee object to any supplemental instructions offered by Appellants concerning proper execution of the Will. Appellee introduced evidence on the proper execution of the will. Moreover, Appellee had the opportunity to cross-examine Rhonda Lawson. Despite Rhonda Lawson's trial testimony the weekend before the trial was scheduled to begin, the Appellee did not seek a continuance of the trial to allow more time to investigate.

Despite Judge John L. Henning ruling on the Appellee's Motion in July 2003, an appealable Order was not entered until January 12, 2004. This is par for the delay that has plagued this action. Jury selection was originally set for February 27, 2001. Because of a conflict with Appellee's attorney, trial was rescheduled for May 8, 2001. Because of a second conflict with Appellee's attorney, the matter was again rescheduled for August 14, 2001. Due to a conflict with one of Appellants' witnesses, the matter was reset and heard on November 5 and 6, 2001. It then took more than twenty months to get a ruling from the trial judge on Appellee's Motion for New Trial and more than two years from the trial date before an order was entered granting the Motion for New Trial.

Appellee's attorney submitted to Appellants' attorney a proposed order from the July hearing on August 5, 2003. On August 17, 2003, Appellants' attorney corresponded with Appellee's attorney stating objections to the order. Because no action was taken by the Appellee, on September 18, 2003, Appellants corresponded with the Appellee's attorney regarding entry of the order. On October 13, 2003, Appellee filed his proposed order along with Appellants' objections with the trial judge. On October 17, 2003, the trial judge corresponded with the Appellee's attorney regarding his ruling and asking the Appellee's attorney to change the order accordingly. On November 13, 2003, a second order was prepared by the Appellee's attorney and was entered by Judge Henning. The order had not been sent to the Appellants' attorney for an opportunity to object. On December 9, 2003, Appellants' attorney sent the trial judge correspondence regarding entry of the order which Appellants were not given an opportunity to review and respond before entry. An order prepared by the Appellants regarding the hearing was

submitted which rescinded the order dated November 13, 2003 to the extent it was inconsistent. The Court entered that Order on January 12, 2004 to which Appellants now appeal.

III. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

- A. **THE LOWER COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION BY AWARDING APPELLEE A NEW TRIAL.**
- B. **APPELLEE FAILED TO OBJECT TO APPELLANTS' MOTION TO AMEND THE NOTICE OF CONTEST TO ALLEGE BIDDIE WARE'S WILL WAS NOT VALIDLY EXECUTED AND DID NOT OBJECT TO INSTRUCTIONS REGARDING VALID EXECUTION OF A WILL, AND, THUS, WAIVED ANY RIGHTS TO OBJECT ON THOSE GROUNDS.**
- C. **THE APPELLANTS' CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS HAVE BEEN VIOLATED BECAUSE THE LOWER COURT'S DECISION TO AWARD A NEW TRIAL WAS NOT TIMELY MADE.**

The lower Court abused its discretion when it awarded Appellee a new trial because of its concern over the credibility of the witness Rhonda Lawson, as well as the Appellee's opportunity to investigate and inquire as to Rhonda Lawson's credibility since the verdict was not against the clear weight of the evidence, was not based on false evidence, and would not result in a miscarriage of justice.

IV. POINTS AND AUTHORITIES RELIED UPON

- A. **THE LOWER COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION BY AWARDING APPELLEE A NEW TRIAL.**

Pursuant to Rule 59(a) of the West Virginia Rules of Civil Procedure, a lower court may grant a new trial "in an action in which there has been a trial by jury, for any of the reasons for which new trials have heretofore been granted in actions at law" The lower court's grant of a new trial in this action constitutes an abuse of discretion because the jury's verdict was not against the clear weight of the evidence, was not based on false evidence, and did not result in

a miscarriage of justice. In In re State of West Virginia Public Building Asbestos Litigation, 193 W. Va. 119, 454 S.E.2d 413 (1994), *cert. denied*, 515 U.S. 1160 (1995), this Court discussed the standards pertaining to a motion for new trial:

A motion for a new trial is governed by a different standard than a motion for a directed verdict. When a trial judge vacates a jury verdict and awards a new trial pursuant to Rule 59 of the West Virginia Rules of Civil Procedure, the trial judge has the authority to weigh the evidence and consider the credibility of the witnesses. If the trial judge finds the verdict is against the clear weight of the evidence, is based on false evidence or will result in a miscarriage of justice, the trial judge may set aside the verdict, even if supported by substantial evidence, and grant a new trial. A trial judge's decision to award a new trial is not subject to appellate review unless the trial judge abuses his or her discretion.

Asbestos Litigation, at syl. pt. 3.

This Court has recognized "when a trial court abuses its discretion and grants a new trial on an erroneous view of the law, a clearly erroneous assessment of the evidence, or on error that had no appreciable effect on the outcome, it is this Court's duty to reverse." Shiel v. Ryu, 203 W. Va. 40, 45, 506 S.E.2d 77, 82 (1998) (quoting Tennant v. Marion Health Care Foundation, Inc., 194 W. Va. 97, 106, 459 S.E.2d 374, 383 (1995)).

Similarly, in Maynard v. Adkins, 193 W. Va. 456, 457 S.E.2d 133 (1995), this Court reiterated the limited appellate review principles of Asbestos Litigation, but recognized that "consistent with Asbestos Litigation, on the other hand, is the general principle that the judgment of a trial court in awarding a new trial should be reversed if it is 'clearly wrong' or if a consideration of the evidence shows that the case was a proper one for jury determination." Maynard, 193 W. Va. at 459, 457 S.E.2d at 136 (citations omitted). As this Court has consistently explained, "[w]here the trial court improperly sets aside a verdict of a jury, such verdict will be reinstated by this Court and judgment rendered thereon." Shiel, 203 W. Va. at

46, 506 S.E.2d at 83 (citing Bronson v. Riffe, 148 W. Va. 362, 135 S.E.2d 244, syl. pt. 4 (1964)).

Although the ruling of a trial court in granting or denying a motion for a new trial is entitled to great respect and weight, the trial court's ruling will be reversed on appeal when it is clear that the trial court has acted under some misapprehension of the law or the evidence.

Shiel, 203 W. Va. at 46, 506 S.E.2d at 83 (citations omitted).

In this case, the parties presented testimony from Cassandra Wilmoth, the notary who executed Biddie Ware's Will, and the witnesses who witnessed the Will, Rhonda Lawson and Sandra Harman. The facts concerning the execution of the Will are disputed. Rhonda Lawson unequivocally states that she executed Biddie Ware's Will as a witness inside the law office out of the presence of Biddie Ware. Sandra Harman testified she could not remember where Rhonda Lawson signed the Will. Cassandra Wilmoth, the notary, drafted Biddie Ware's Will and says the witnesses signed their names to Biddie Ware's Will in her presence. The testimony was submitted for jury deliberation and there was no objection by the Appellee of improper instructions or other error in the presentation of the evidence.

This Court has consistently held "that the function of the jury is to weigh the evidence with which it is presented and to arrive at a conclusion regarding damages and liability." Shiel, 203 W. Va. at 46, 506 S.E.2d at 83. In Shiel, this Court cites with authority the United States Supreme Court's decision in Anderson v. Liberty Lobby, Inc., 477 U.S. 242 (1986), wherein it explained that "[c]redibility determinations, the weighing of the evidence, and the drawing of legitimate inferences from the facts are jury functions, not those of a judge. . . ." Shiel, 203 W. Va. at 46, 506 S.E.2d at 83 (quoting Anderson at 255.) Although Asbestos Litigation grants the trial court the authority to weigh the evidence in the context of granting a new trial, "such

authorization does not obviate the essential role of the jury in resolving conflicting evidence."

Shiel, 203 W. Va. at 46, 506 S.E.2d at 83. This Court has consistently held:

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