1 POST-TRIAL MOTIONS OF APRIL 8, 2003:

2 THE COURT: Call Ware vs. Howell at this time -- Mr.
3 Wilmoth's here on his Motion to Alter or Amend the Judgment or
4 in the Alternative For a New Trial, and Mrs. Wilson's here on
5 behalf of her clients.

6 Go ahead, Mr. Wilmoth.

7 MR. WILMOTH: Thank you, Your Honor.

8 The -- the basis of my Motion is kind of twofold -- I'm --
9 I'm sure the Court's aware of what took place of what took place
10 -- we tried this case in November. The day of -- the day of the
11 trial following a Saturday -- Saturday Evidentiary Telephonic
12 Deposition of one (1) of the witnesses Plaintiffs came in --
13 Petitioners came in, and filed a Motion to Amend to add a Count
14 to the Complaint alleging that the Will was improperly executed
15 because the witnesses had not executed the Will in the presence
16 of the Testatrix.

17 There was testimony presented by Robin -- I'm sorry --
18 Rhonda Lawson through her Evidentiary Deposition, however, the
19 Notary and the other witness denied that testimony. That issue
20 was one (1) that, apparently, the Jury felt strongly about, and
21 as the Jury Verdict Form indicated if they made that
22 determination they didn't have to go further with the other
23 determination.

24 Since that time I've done a little bit of research and I've
25 found the case of Wade versus Wade which is a 1930's case -- I

1 believe 1938 and that case doesn't speak directly to the facts
2 but it does raise the issue that if witnesses don't execute the
3 Will in the presence of the Testator or Testatrix, but
4 subsequently confirm their execution of the document in the
5 presence of the Testator or Testatrix then the Will is valid.

6 And the Supreme Court's rationale behind that is that you do
7 not want to undo or take away from the Testator's intent on a
8 mere technicality, and that case has been the case -- I believe
9 it was cited with approval in Stevens versus Casdorpf which is
10 a 1998 case. So based upon that research my Motion would be to
11 -- if the Court is not inclined to direct judgment which I'll
12 address in just a minute -- then I would ask the Court to give
13 us the opportunity for a new trial so that the Jury can be
14 instructed as to what the Law is, and evidence or testimony can
15 be presented as to any circumstances that occurred following the
16 witnesses' execution of the Will.

17 As far as my Motion for a New Trial or for Judgment
18 Notwithstanding the Jury's Verdict the sole issue at trial up
19 until the day -- up until the day of trial when the Petitioners
20 were permitted to amend -- the sole issue was whether or not it
21 was the Testator's intent whether there was undue influence
22 exerted over the Testatrix to induce her to execute this Will
23 that left everything to Mrs. Howell or Mrs. Conrad now -- who
24 was the Respondent. There was no evidence to indicate that
25 there was any kind of undue influence exerted over Mrs. Ware at

1 the time she executed the Will -- everyone of the witnesses on
2 both sides indicated that Mrs. Ware was a very competent
3 individual -- that she read -- that she could write -- that she
4 understood when you spoke to her and she understood what she
5 read, and that she executed that Will -- there's no contention
6 that the -- that the signature on the Will was that of Mrs.
7 Ware's.

8 The Jury because they were instructed about the execution
9 of the Will by the witnesses didn't get to the opportunity to
10 determine whether they felt that undue influence was exerted,
11 and I -- based upon the evidence that was presented I believe
12 the Jury would have found that there was no undue influence.
13 However, because they weren't permitted to -- to get to that
14 issue I would ask the Court having sat through the trial and
15 having heard the testimony -- make the determination that she
16 was competent -- that there was no undue influence exerted and
17 to set aside the Jury Verdict based upon the mere technicality
18 that Wade allows the Court to exclude and render judgement in
19 favor of my client, Mrs. Conrad -- Mrs. Howell, and that the
20 Will that was executed in 1997 be the Will that controls the
21 Estate of Biddie Lemon Ware.

22 THE COURT: All right, sir, thank you. Mrs. Wilson.

23 MRS. WILSON: Thank you, Your Honor.

24 Mr. Wilmoth has presented I guess basically two (2) issues
25 now -- one (1) of which was not -- or at least I didn't believe

1 was addressed in his response, and I'll start with that first
 2 because that's what his last issue was -- was whether or not
 3 there was undue influence. And, like I said, that really wasn't
 4 addressed in his Memo so I'm not quite prepared for that, but I
 5 do recall from the trial and from research and from pleadings
 6 that have been filed and instructions that were filed that undue
 7 influence does not mean competency. As Mr. Wilmoth said that
 8 she was competent -- she could read -- she could write -- she
 9 could understand -- I don't believe anybody disputed that. And
 10 that was not the issue that I presented as to whether or not she
 11 was competent -- I admitted from day one that we believed that
 12 she was competent. Our issue was whether or not the parties had
 13 -- the parties being Mr. Wilmoth's client had exerted undue
 14 influence on her especially concerning the circumstances
 15 surrounding the execution of the Will. The witnesses testified
 16 that Biddie Ware came to the -- Mr. Mullens' office -- was in
 17 the back of the parking lot -- did not come inside and the
 18 Notary stooped down beside of her and sort of went over in
 19 general this page -- that page -- did not read the Will fully to
 20 her it was her testimony I believe, but it basically said
 21 "Here's this page -- here's this page" -- that's the Notary's
 22 testimony.

23 The other witnesses who were standing there -- in fact,
 24 Rhonda Lawson testified she did not hear Biddie Ware talk at all
 25 -- she didn't hear Biddie Ware say "This is my Will" -- no words

to that effect whatsoever that made Rhonda Lawson know for certain that Biddie Ware knew she was signing a Will, and that was presented through her testimony which was done by -- a few days before trial because she could not be here for trial. And so with that issue there's just -- there's nothing for the Jury -- the Jury didn't go to this issue so I don't believe that it's proper at this point for Mr. Wilmoth to ask you to declare -- I think as he said it -- or to make the determination that Biddie Ware was competent, and that the Will should not be set aside due to undue influence.

Going back to the first issue, and I'm a little sketchy on what the Motion is about. We did come in the day of trial after we took the Deposition of Rhonda Lawson on a Saturday and I discussed it with David Wilmoth, and I told him what I was going to do -- I filed that the first day of trial to amend our Petition to reflect the improper execution. I did that under Rule 15(b) of the West Virginia Rules of Civil Procedure -- I don't -- I'm not quite clear if Mr. Wilmoth thinks that was a problem, but Rule 15(b) of the West Virginia Rules of Civil Procedure gives this Court wide discretion to amend the proceedings and states that the Court shall do so freely. So I don't really believe that -- that's the issue -- I think what Mr. Wilmoth is saying is -- if the witnesses signed it -- at least and hopefully he'll correct me if I'm wrong, but it sounds like what he's saying is -- if the witnesses signed the

1 Will outside of the presence of the Testator then he referred to
2 Wade versus Wade that it -- that -- that Court raised an issue
3 that if they don't sign in their presence they can affirm their
4 signature -- at least I believe that's what he was saying by
5 this Wade versus Wade decision. But our West Virginia Supreme
6 Court -- now this case as he has said has not been overturned,
7 but our Supreme Court in the case of Stevens versus Casdorph
8 clearly states there is unequivocal -- the relevant requirements
9 of the Statute which is West Virginia code 41-1-3 calls for a
10 "Testator to sign his or her Will or acknowledge such Will in
11 the presence of at least two (2) witnesses at the same time and
12 such witnesses must sign the Will in the presence of the
13 Testator and each other." It's unequivocal language -- the West
14 Virginia Code -- it's unequivocal -- 41-1-3 states --

15 No Will shall be valid unless it be in writing and signed
16 by the Testator. The signature shall be made or the Will
17 acknowledged by him in the presence of at least two (2)
18 competent witnesses present at the same time and such
19 witnesses shall subscribe the Will in the presence of the
20 Testator and of each other.

21 That is simply not what we had -- Rhonda Lawson testified in her
22 testimony that she did not sign Biddie Ware's Will in the
23 presence of Biddie Ware.

24 Now, the other requirements were -- were met -- Biddie Ware
25 signed the Will in the presence of Rhonda Lawson and Sandy

1 Harman, but the Code goes on to say that "The witnesses must
2 subscribe the Will in the presence of the Testator." And Rhonda
3 Lawson unequivocally says she did not sign in the presence of
4 the Testator. I then read the relevant portions of the
5 Attestation Clause which was attached to the Will which says
6 that "We signed in the presence of each other and in the
7 presence of the Testator" and in her testimony she said "I did
8 not sign in her presence -- I came back inside, and I signed her
9 Will outside of the presence of the Testator." So -- and,
10 apparently, the Jury agreed with that because they found that
11 the Will was not properly executed, and the Respondent had the
12 burden of proof by a preponderance of the evidence that the Will
13 was properly executed.

14 In Mr. Wilmoth's Motion he refers to the Jury just
15 basically disregarding the testimony of the Notary, but I would
16 simply say that in the charge to the Jury they're allowed -- it
17 says -- I kind of took it out of your Civil Charge --

18 Allows the Jury to consider among other things the memory
19 of a witness -- the witness's demeanor -- the
20 reasonableness or unreasonableness of the witness's
21 testimony -- if the Jury believes the witness testified
22 falsely it could disregard the witness's testimony
23 completely.

24 And I believe I took that from your Civil Charge that we gave to
25 the Jury that day.

1 THE COURT: It does sound like you did.

2 MS. WILSON: And -- and the Jury Verdict just didn't say
3 why they didn't believe -- I mean that's not part of the -- it's
4 not part of the Jury Verdict Form -- the Jury Verdict Form says
5 "Was it properly executed" and they said that it was not, and
6 for those reasons I would ask that you uphold the decision of
7 the Jury.

8 THE COURT: Well, I'm somewhat concerned about the case --
9 it's extremely rare that this Court would set aside a Jury
10 Verdict -- in fact, I don't know if it's ever been done before.
11 But I am concerned about someone who, in essence, signs an
12 Affidavit that says that they witnessed the signature of the
13 Testatrix in person, and then comes to Court and says "No, I
14 lied that I signed that Affidavit -- I didn't really do that."
15 That -- that's concerning to this Court.

16 I'm also a little bit concerned -- I just looked -- this
17 case was filed in June of 2000, and was tried I think in
18 November of 2001. And I'm a little bit concerned that after --
19 what is that seventeen (17) months of development and
20 preparation for trial -- and you're correct, Ms. Wilson, the
21 Rules do provide for liberal amendments, but I am concerned that
22 the evidence concerning this -- you know -- after nearly
23 eighteen (18) months of trial preparation or after nearly -- I
24 guess that would be seventeen (17) months -- after a year and a
25 half of trial preparation on a Saturday before trial information

1 is developed and the case is amended on Tuesday, and that winds
2 up being the dispositive issue of the trial. And certainly you
3 did the right thing when this information came to your attention
4 moving to amend and present the evidence, but I'm -- I'm
5 concerned that we have all this trial preparation but the issue
6 that's dispositive is essentially from Saturday to Tuesday --
7 one (1), two (2) -- three (3) days old -- that concerns me.

8
9 Mr. Wilmoth, I'm going to take your Motion under advisement
10 and I'm going to look at it and give it some thought, and we'll
11 render a decision. I'll do what I can to render as good a
12 decision as I can.

13 MS. WILSON: Your Honor, could I add one (1) thing that
14 really wasn't addressed --

15 THE COURT: Sure.

16 MS. WILSON: -- by Mr. Wilmoth but given the fact you're
17 going to take it under advisement I'd like for you to consider
18 the case of Brammer versus Taylor -- it's a 1985 decision from
19 the West Virginia Supreme Court and I just happened --

20 THE COURT: Do you have that case with you?

21 MS. WILSON: I do.

22 THE COURT: Did you mention it in your Brief?

23 MS. WILSON: No, I did not.

24 THE COURT: Do you want to just give me a little letter
25 because I'm not going to decide this case this afternoon?

MS. WILSON: Okay, I can do that -- I can just attach this

1 with a letter, and I'll copy Mr. Wilmoth. I just -- I happened
2 to be at a Seminar the other day and this case came up -- it's
3 a 1985 decision which says that "Supervising the execution of a
4 Will constitutes the practice of Law" and it was a Seminar on
5 Will Drafting and that sort of thing and on the ethics portion
6 of the class they were talk -- talking about how secretaries
7 sometimes take a client in the room and execute the Will, and
8 they're saying that's the unauthorized practice of Law. And it
9 actually talks about --

10 THE COURT: Sometimes.

11 MS. WILSON: Pardon --

12 THE COURT: I think they do that about ninety percent (90%)
13 of the time. Okay.

14 MS. WILSON: -- and -- but this case says that's the
15 unauthorized practice of Law and not only could the secretaries
16 or whomever does that have a problem for practicing Law without
17 a license, but the Lawyers that -- if they allow that to go on
18 could have problems. But this case -- just like I said -- the
19 only thing it really talks about is who your claim would be
20 against. In this particular case they had set aside the Will
21 for improper execution, and, basically, in a nutshell it says
22 that if the Will is set aside for improper execution that
23 doesn't affect the beneficiaries. In my case -- my -- my
24 clients -- that would not affect my clients if Mrs. Ware as an
25 intended beneficiary has a claim then it's going to be against

1
2 somebody other than the other beneficiaries that are taking
3 under the Will for improper execution. So I will supplement
4 with this case, and just for your consideration when you're
5 giving this some thought.

6 THE COURT: Yeah, well, again, that -- of course, that kind
7 of goes back to the original thing I said which is you have
8 somebody that executes an Affidavit that says "I did this" and
9 then they come into Court and say "No, I didn't" and that's
10 concerning.

11 MS. WILSON: And for this -- so you know for the delay in
12 time and Mr. Wilmoth can probably add something to this if he
13 wants, but this case got filed way back when with the County
14 Commission -- when we went through that process and we were
15 literally months before we were able to get anything done. And
16 I think Mr. Wilmoth and I came and asked you "What can we do to
17 get this off ground zero" --

18 THE COURT: Yeah, you did.

19 MS. WILSON: -- and then Mrs. Lawson who testified -- the
20 one that said that she wasn't present was I guess basically Mr.
21 Wilmoth's witness and she was not here and we had a time getting
22 her here, and just getting her scheduled.

23 THE COURT: Oh, as far as the delay is concerned I don't
24 think there was any unreasonable delay on your --

25 MS. WILSON: Okay.

THE COURT: -- I just -- I'm just concerned after that long

1 period of time that the dispositive issue comes up such a short
2 time before trial -- that was -- that was my concern.

3 Well, I'll take it under advisement.

4 MS. WILSON: Thank you.

5 THE COURT: Oh, I've got -- and you can send that in, Ms.
6 Wilson, and you can send anything else in, Mr. Wilmoth you
7 wanted to send in.

8 MR. WILMOTH: Okay, thank you, Your Honor.

9 THE COURT: If you guys even wanted to talk -- you can talk
10 and maybe even settle the case. Thank you.

11 MR. WILMOTH: Shall I do an Order just --

12 THE COURT: Yes, if you would.

13 MR. WILMOTH: Okay.

14 THE COURT: Thank you. (Court adjourned).

15 POST-TRIAL MOTIONS OF JULY 28, 2003:

16 THE COURT: Ware versus Howell, 00-C-110. The parties do
17 not appear in person but appear by Counsel -- Ms. Bridgette
18 Wilson and Mr. David Wilmoth.

19 Mr. Wilmoth, I think we're here I guess somewhat on your
20 Motion -- it's been a troubling case.

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